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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located at 101 Pawnee Avenue in Manitou Springs, the First Congregational Church is
a single detached structure irregular in shape and built of native stone (squared
rubble). The Church is one and one-half stories in height with a two-story tower
on the northwest corner. The main or west facade has two bays, the north facade
five bays (plus two others set inside the projections forming the apse and narthex),
the south facade the same number as it is a mirror image of the north, and the east
facade a stone and cinderblock wing built over the years from 1890-1974. The roof
is gabled.

The secondary features give the structure its characteristic appearance. All the
structural openings employ the Gothic arch. On the west facade the main entrance
occurs through such an opening and flanking this are three lancet windows, the
central unit being taller and wider than the other two. The fenestration on the
other sides also display the lancet window and groupings of three reflecting the
features of the main facade. The tower which rises on the northwest corner has an
open belfry and a pyramidal roof topped by a cross.

The interior retains much of its late nineteenth century character. The walls are
painted plaster. Both the pews and ceiling beams are walnut and there is consider-
able use of walnut panelling. There are two balconies above the alter although

one has been closed off temporarily. But most notable are the stained glass windows
in all the structural openings.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The First Congregational Church in Manitou Springs is significant for its role in
the religious development of Manitou Springs and for its architectural features
which illustrate the adaptation of Gothic elements to building in early-day Colorado.
There is some inconclusive evidence that the structure was designed by Robert A.
Roeschlaub, in which case there would be another dimension to the structure's sig-
nificance.

In 1877 the Reverend R. T. Cross of the Congregational Church in Colorado Springs be-
gan to preach on Sunday afternoons at the schoolhouse on Ute Avenue in Manitou Springs,
as the town, only one year old, had no churches. During the next two years several
people from Manitou were received into the congregation in Colorado Springs, but in
1879 these parishioners decided to form a Congregational Church in Manitou itself.
After organizing themselves in August of that year, the members made plans to construct
a building. Although the evidence is inconclusive, there is some thought that Robert
A. Roeschlaub of Denver offered a design, but in any event, as time permitted, the
parishioners quarried native stone from nearby Williams Canyon and had the church

built by two local contractors, Angus Gillis and George W. Snider, at a cost of 53,400.
The building was dedicated on January 1, 1882. Despite the completion of this work,
the parish grew slowly and apparently served as a missionary post as most early pastors
remained only about a year. Yet the congregation did increase, and in the early 1890s
an addition was constructed in the rear, thus giving the church the shape of a cross.
The interior was also remodeled. Over the years the congregation céntinued to prosper,
but in 1922 the name of the structure was changed to the Community Congregational - :
Church. Later in 1960 the congregation joined the United Church of--€hrist. Today,

the structure is the oldest Colorado church used continuously by Coﬁyregationalists;

From an architectural perspective the Church reveals much about an ;;fl& day in
Colorado-—a time about twenty years after the gold rush and only four’xears after
statehood (1876). The architect's specifications--still in existence~-called for the
use of "Gothic arches---Gothic windows" and so forth, perhaps because the High Victor-
ian Gothic Revival had reached its zenith in the past decade. Yet unlike structures
in this style with their polychromatic building materials and highly decorated lancet
windows, the First Congregational Church in Manitou Springs is a monochromatic struc-
ture with simple, relatively undecorated fenestration, the characteristic features of
the Gothic Revival of the early nineteenth century. While this may reflect the archi-
tect's desire to use the older style or the architect's ignorance of the aspects of
the newer style, it is more likely that the design represents an effort to build a
church in High Victorian Gothic, an effort that had to be compromised by a lack of
funds or adequate building materials or both. The result was a church built in the
epoch of High Victorian Gothic, but appearing more characteristic of the earlier re-
vival, all in all an interesting comment on the economics, culture, and architectural
perceptions of the early settlers of Manitou Springs.
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